
COMMUNITIES AND PLACE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AGENDA

Monday, 11 March 2019 at 5.30 pm in the Bridges Room - Civic Centre

From the Chief Executive, Sheena Ramsey
Item Business

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Minutes of the last meeting (Pages 3 - 10)

3  OSC Review -Work to address skill shortages and increase employment 
opportunities - Evidence Gathering (Pages 11 - 14)

Report of the Acting Strategic Director, Communities and Environment and the Strategic 
Director, Care, Wellbeing and Learning

4  OSC Review of Roads and Highways - Highways Maintenance Progress 
Update (Pages 15 - 16)

Report of the Acting Strategic Director, Communities and Environment

5  Flood and Water Management Act 2010 - Annual Progress Report (Pages 17 
- 20)

Report of the Acting Strategic Director, Communities and Envionment

6  Annual Work Programme (Pages 21 - 24)

Report of the Chief Executive and the Strategic Director, Corporate Resources and 
Governance

Contact: Sonia Stewart - Tel: 0191 433 3045 - Email: SoniaStewart@Gateshead.Gov.Uk, , 
Date: Friday, 1 March 2019

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

COMMUNITIES AND PLACE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
MEETING

Monday, 28 January 2019

PRESENT: Councillor N Weatherley (Chair)

Councillor(s): T Graham, D Burnett, K Dodds, A Geddes, 
F Geddes, H Haran, S Hawkins, M Hood, H Kelly, 
J McClurey, J Simpson, J Turnbull and A Wheeler

APOLOGIES: Councillor(s): B Clelland

CPL21 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 

RESOLVED -  That the minutes of the meeting held on 10 December 2018 be 
approved as a correct record.

 

CPL22 GO GATESHEAD HEALTH EQUALITY AUDIT 

The Committee received a report to provide an update on the Health Equity Audit 
undertaken within the Go Gateshead Sport and Leisure Service.   The Audit was 
undertaken by the Public Health team twelve months ago.
 
A major limitation of the HEA is that the leisure card data represents customers that 
have a card (provided personal details) but for the purpose of the report it is not 
possible to provide an analysis of how ‘active’ the various card holders are in terms 
of frequency of visiting facilities and type of activity chosen.
 
Data was captured at a single point in time in December 2017, however it is 
acknowledged, that there are significant limitations in the data, which result in the 
need to make some assumptions which are highlighted, throughout the report.  The 
caveat with the leisure card data is that the data represents customers that have a 
card (provided personal details) but for the purpose of the report we are unable to 
analyse data regarding usage of the facilities by individuals.
 
Data is not held on the current system for non-card paying customers in relation to 
determining customer demographics, or the reason for use of the facility.  Data is 
also not captured regarding the use of the facilities from events, or from informal or 
formalised groups who play a major part in the utilisation of the Go Gateshead Sport 
& Leisure facilities, ie football, swimming clubs, schools etc.
 
Two key recommendations have come out of the study as follows:
 

(a)  Improve data collection and data quality to understand service usage.

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



(b)  Target work with particular communities (geographical and communities of 
interest) to improve service use.

 
The service aims to have:
 

(a)  Fit for purpose and relevant leisure facilities that lie at the heart of 
communities.

(b)  A better understanding of the needs and aspirations of the people of 
Gateshead in terms of their physical activity needs.

(c)   Raised physical activity levels amongst all sections of the community and 
improved health and wellbeing of Gateshead residents.

 
The service is currently devising a refreshed business plan which will be modelled 
upon the recommendations set out within this report.  Therefore in response to the 
Health Equality Audit findings the service is currently:
 

(a)  Improving data collection regarding
a.    All protected characteristics
b.    Non-card holders including wider community activity
c.     Group based users such as schools and clubs
d.    Exploring options to consider data collection on ‘non GO card 

holders’ of leisure services in Gateshead.  This would be useful to 
determine the reason why non Go card holders are using the 
facilities, the frequency they use them and what can be done to 
move these customers to leisure card/annual memberships and 
what the barriers to this may be.

e.    Capture more qualitative (case study) information to demonstrate 
health and wellbeing impact of the service.

(b)  Developing a community engagement plan to target and include:
a.    Areas of deprivation
b.    Communities of interest such as looked after children and children 

with a disability, as well as geographical areas.
c.     A review of the criteria linked to the Go Gateshead Access Card 

scheme to encourage greater and wider uptake of the card by at 
risk groups

d.    The service is currently launching the ‘Go Easy’ programme which 
is designed to make sport and physical activity more accessible 
and will involve:      

                                                  i.    Education, support and sign-posting
                                                 ii.    Provide free/discounted activities
                                                iii.    Engage communities of interest and target geographical areas,

through workshops/forums
                                               iv.    Work closely with GP Practices and community groups.
 
The Committee heard from Karl Boyd, Felling Magpies.  Karl advised the Committee 
that Felling Magpies were in their 30th year this year, the club was founded in 1989.  
The aim of the club is to make football affordable and do a lot of work to support 
families, the club has families who do not have much of an income.  The club has an 
age range of 3 – 42 years.
 

Page 4



The members of the club come from many diverse background, there are no trials 
for people to join the club.  The club now has somewhere they can call home.  
Previously the club didn’t have any facilities for girls, they didn’t have any 
partnership with schools and they didn’t have the partnership with the Council.  5 
years ago the club was on the verge of closure with only 21 members.  The club now 
has 330 children.   235 are from East Gateshead.  The club now has the ability to 
identify where the children are coming from and there are a few who come from 
outside of the area.  The club completed an asset transfer of facilities from the 
Council at Wardley Welfare Ground.  The club are working with the local community 
and have created partnerships with local schools.  There are 60 great coaches / 
managers who give up so much of their time and can’t be thanked enough.  The club 
and coaches are now being recognised for the work that they do.  The club has 
worked with the local council, the local ward officers and local community.  The 
asset transfer was completed with the support from the Football foundation and 
Sport England.  
 
The club has partnerships with Nike/Durham FA and Newcastle Foundation, the 
coaches from Newcastle Foundation come along and put sessions on in local 
schools.  When kids see this they want to be part of football. 
 
The club still face some challenges which include:
 

      Keeping affordable
      Kits – if teams don’t have sponsorship, the club pays for that team’s kit.
      The number of clubs who are all going for the same pots of funding or 

sponsorship of teams 
      The winter training costs for the club was massive, however, they have now 

signed a partnership with Gateshead International Stadium which has 
brought down the costs.

 
The Committee thanked Karl for the work he and the other volunteers at the club 
undertook on a voluntary basis.
 
Chris advised that this was about giving the Committee a flavour of the data that 
couldn’t be measured, given that Gateshead support 60 clubs around Gateshead 
with 80 volunteers registering 800 volunteer hours per week.  Chris advised the 
Committee that this is one of the issues officers are faced with in terms of the gap 
around data collection. 
 
The Committee then heard from Lyn Rowell who gave the Committee an insight 
from a customers’ point of view.   Lyn advised that she was one of 5% of the 
population who has severe asthma.  Lyn advised the Committee that 3 years ago 
her health took a nose dive and not only was she in and out of hospital, she was in 
intensive care.  Someone asked her if she’d like to try the pulmonary rehab 
programme, Lyn explained that this was a combination of interventions run by the 
respiratory team including exercise, occupational therapists and dieticians who come 
and give a talk to groups.  Lynn advised that before she started on the programme 
she was in wheelchair a large part of the time and had 2 sticks to move around.  She 
had to practice for 3 weeks marching and progressed well from there.  The exercises 
are controlled and start with basic chair exercises.  Lyn advised the Committee that 

Page 5



initially she couldn’t get off a chair. 
 
Lyn told the Committee that she attended the GP for her annual review and the 
asthma nurse didn’t recognise her.  Lyn advised the Committee that she still has 
health problems but she is able to bounce back quicker.  Lyn advised that she is not 
special in the class, everyone has their own horror stories but if someone had told 
her 3 years ago she wouldn’t be in a wheelchair and wouldn’t need her sticks she 
wouldn’t have believed them.  Lyn was very thankful of the support she had received 
from the Go Easy Team.  
 
The Committee thanked Lyn for her attendance and welcomed her input. 
 
 RESOLVED - (i) That the presentations be noted.

(ii) That the future plans based on the recommendations of 
the Audit be noted.

CPL23 OSC REVIEW - WORK TO ADDRESS SKILL SHORTAGES AND INCREASE 
EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES - EVIDENCE GATHERING 

The Committee heard that this was the 4th evidence gathering session as part of the 
Review to Address Skills Shortages & Increase Employment Opportunities.  The 
previous sessions had focussed on early years/ pre 16 / post 16 /post 18 and career 
progression.
 
The Committee were advised that today’s session would focus on retraining and 
retention of staff, in particular those over age 45.
 
The Committee first heard from Carly Hinds, from the Education Development 
Trust.  Carly advised the Committee that the Fuller Working Lives project was 
delivered by Education Development Trust in Partnership with DWP and NELEP.  
 
Carly advised the Committee that the Fuller Working Lives strategy was produced by 
the DWP in February 2017.  It had an ambition to increase retention of older workers 
within the labour market and to change the perception of employers and 
individuals.    Education Development Trust, including the National Careers service 
became involved in the Fuller Working Lives pilot in 2017.  The Trust have worked in 
partnership with DWP and JCP and worked in conjunction with the North East LEP 
as a priority included within their 2024 vision:

                “A reduction in inactivity levels in our 50 plus workforce, as skills 
investment enables our older workers to remain in work.”

 
It has been identified that we are getting older and it is inevitable that we need to 
stay in work longer as this means we are better off financially and for health 
benefits.  We are leaving the labour market earlier now that in 1950 this generation 
is facing a unique set of problems.  They face 10 hours of informal caring per week, 
there is more potential for them to have dependents and are working full time.  
 

Page 6



 
Fuller Working Lives offer three main elements of support:
 

         Consultancy support to help with succession planning delivered via 
workshops

         Careers fairs to get 50 plus customers into work
         Career Reviews which were held in employer premises to facilitate a 

dialogue between the employee and employer regarding the remainder 
of their career, this can often be more successful with an individual 
who is impartial like ourselves.

 
When work is completed a high-level feedback report is provided to the employer to 
enable them to understand needs, aspirations and increase retention and recognise 
potential of staff.  
 
The Careers Advisers are level 6 qualified, and they work with individuals in a 
confidential space to explore issues with an impartial person.
 
There have been some challenges:
 

         The Lack of a National Campaign reflected in both EDT delivery areas
         NE employers struggling to prioritise 10 to 15-year problem in a difficult 

economic environment
         SMEs reluctant to engage
         Large amount of engagement work to secure delivery of MLCR

The project has been awarded further funding to deliver Fuller Working Lives in 
2019.  They are promoting the mid-life career reviews.  Consultancy support will be 
available to 14 business and will be delivered on an individual basis.  The project will 
be setting up some ‘What The Future Holds’ careers fairs.
 
The Committee then heard from Martin McDonnell and Julie Killick on current 
employment/ unemployment position within Gateshead.  
 
Currently the employment rate in Gateshead is 73.4%, in the North East 70.8% and 
75.1% in Great Britain.  In terms of unemployment, this is measured via a claimant 
count which in Gateshead is 5,360 or 4.2%.  This compares to 4.0% in the North 
East and 2.4% nationally.
 
7,200 or 24.6% of economically inactive residents want a job.  This compares to 
19.4% in the North East and 21.4% nationally.
 
Redundancies have had little impact in Gateshead, and this has not been a factor in 
the growth of unemployment.  For those  people who work in retail and have faced 
redundancy, in the main have transferable skills and have moved into other 
employment.
 
Universal Credit has gathered pace over the last year, six previous types of benefit 
have been replaced by Universal Credit.  There are still 8,300 on Employment 

Page 7



Support Allowance in Gateshead.  There is a natural migration of 50-60 people per 
week.  The government is telling us that we have record levels of employment, 
however if someone is working one or two hours per week they are classed as being 
in employment.  Although some people like the flexibility of working part time hours 
and short hours.  There is also some anecdotal evidence that there are not so many 
zero hours contracts around.
 
It was noted that the figures on the surface look quite good, however, the actual 
income into some family groups has been pushed down.  Gateshead has a very 
robust labour market, with employment sites at Team Valley, Blaydon and Felling 
with good infrastructure in place, close to major road and rail routes.  In terms of job 
density per resident, it is 0.81 in Gateshead vs 0.73 in the North East.  It is hoped 
that there will be more and better jobs following the developments of  Follingsby 
Max, Gateshead Quays and Baltic Quarter.  
 
Follingsby Max will employ at least 1,000 people, it is hoped that jobs can be 
managed to get the maximum for Gateshead residents.  Gateshead Quays will be 
on stream hopefully within a couple of years.  
 
Currently there are residents who are just coping.  Sometimes the barriers to work 
are very personal.  The service aims to support residents and work intensively in 
partnership with other services.   There are a number of schemes operating in 
Gateshead and the North East to support residents:
 

       Generation NE – to support 18-29 year olds
       Building Better Opportunities Wise Steps - working with those further away 

from the labour market
       Links to Work – 12 to 24 months with the unemployed
       Syrian Vulnerable Persons’ Resettlement Scheme
       Families Gateshead – this helps those into work who have the support of 

Families Gateshead 
 
The following support is also undertaken by external providers, the DWP, the 
National Careers Service, the Mental Health Trailblazer and Moving on Tyne and 
Wear.
 
Economic Development has an officer co-located within the Gateshead Housing 
Company and Job Centre Plus.  The service also has the Make a Change Project 
which is an economic development project funded by ESF.
 
There are a number of challenges in terms of criteria, specifically around, who can 
be helped, when they are helped, how they are helped, the eligibility criteria, 
numbers can be capped, there is a reliance on EU Funding, there is a fragmented 
provider market etc.  The support is time limited and there can be a lack of 
continuity.
 
It was noted that there are a lot of programmes which are nationally commissioned 
and are driven by unit cost.  
 
RESOLVED    -           (i)   That the issues raised be noted

Page 8



                                    (ii)  That the proposals outlined for future evidence gathering 
be approved.      

                                                               
CPL24 MANAGING THE ENVIRONMENT - PROGRESS UPDATE 

The Committee received a report to update on progress made with environmental 
enforcement across the borough.
 
The new on-street environmental enforcement officers have commenced activity and 
are located within the Parking Services team within Communities and Environment.  
The service went live on 8 January 2019.  To date they have issued 31 Fixed 
Penalty Notices for offences, including dog fouling, littering, littering from vehicles, fly 
posting and graffiti.  
 
Operations are intelligence led and there has been a focus on hotspots based on 
information received from ward members previously.  Councillors and members of 
the public are encouraged to email CE Environmental Enforcement mailbox with 
requests for service.  Priorities will then be set based on the nature of the issue and 
availability of resources.  
 
The Enforcement Team in Development, Transport and Public Protection carries out 
a wide range of functions, including Planning and Highways Enforcement and more 
recently since 2016, Environmental Enforcement.
 
Further to the last report in April 2018 the approach taken by the Enforcement team 
to tackle environmental issues has four streams:
 

         Reactive work dealing with antisocial issues
         Proactive work dealing with antisocial issues
         Reactive work dealing with criminal issues
         Proactive work dealing with criminal issues

 
The volume of work dealt with by the team is extremely high with over 6000 
complaints about waste related issues being received since April 2018.
 
The bulk of the work carried out in this area involves issuing Fixed Penalty Notices 
(FPNs) to the perpetrators of small scale flytipping.  Adopting this approach has 
proved to be extremely effective, offering a low cost and proportionate response 
carrying a deterrent effect and to date there continues to be no repeat offenders.
 
Since April 2018 60 further FPNs have been issued bring the total to 174 since the 
team started issuing at the end of 2016.  In the vast majority of cases FPNs are paid, 
however, if they are not the perpetrator is prosecuted.  
 
Proactive approaches to dealing with antisocial behaviour now have an established 
place in the team.  The Lobley Hill & Bensham/Saltwell Waste Pilot focussing on 320 
houses in the two wards has now been completed and an evaluation is being 
prepared.
 
The enforcement team regularly come across serious criminal activity and since 

Page 9



April 2018 a further 24 individuals and businesses have been prosecuted for waste 
offences.  Penalties include fines totalling £13,237 and costs totalling £5,609, 2 
community orders and vehicles used to commit offences have been seized.  
Warrants have been issued for more than 10 persons who have failed to attend 
court when summonsed.
 
The Enforcement Team carried out regular enforcement exercises targeting waste, 
crime in partnership with other enforcement agencies including Northumbria Police, 
HM Revenue and Customs, the Driver and Vehicle Standards Agency and the 
Environment Agency. 
 
The online reporting platform developed with the Digital Team in the Office of the 
Chief Executive is proving to be an efficient and effective process for the public, 
Members and Officers to report flytipping with increased accuracy, including 
uploading photos and pin pointing locations.
 
RESOLVED -  That the information contained within the report be noted
 

CPL25 ANNUAL WORK PROGRAMME 

The work programme for the 2018/19 Municipal Year was presented to the 
Committee for information.
 
The emerging themes for the 2019/20 Municipal Year was also presented to the 
Committee for their views.  The Chair asked that How we manage Derelict Spaces 
within the borough be added to the work programme for the 2019/20 Municipal Year.
 
RESOLVED -      (i)  that the current work programme for the 2018/19 Municipal 

Year be noted.
                            (ii) that the additional suggestion be considered along with 

emerging themes for the work programme 2019/20 Municipal 
Year.

 

Chair……….………………..

Page 10



COMMUNITIES AND PLACE 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

11th March 2019

TITLE OF REPORT: Review to Address Skills Shortages & Increase 
Employment Opportunities – Fifth Evidence Gathering 
Session

REPORT OF: Tony Alder, Acting Strategic Director, Communities &
Environment

Caroline O’Neill, Strategic Director, Care, Wellbeing &  
Learning

  _________________________________________________________________
SUMMARY 

This report gives detail of the fifth evidence gathering session that will take place on 
the 11th March 2019. The views of the Committee are being sought on the evidence 
presented. 
___________________________________________________________________

Background

1. Communities and Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed that the focus 
of its review in 2018/19 will be working to address skills shortages and increase 
employment opportunities. 

2. The review will help the Committee to have a truly holistic view of the current 
skills and employment position and the challenges we face both now and in the 
future, as well as looking at best practice in other areas which could be developed 
in Gateshead. 

3. The Committee will also consider how we or our partners currently work; highlight 
gaps in provision and identify more effective partnership working opportunities for 
the benefit of our residents and their ability to access employment opportunities, 
with a view to agreeing a set of recommendations.  

Purpose of this session

4. The scoping report, agreed by OSC on the 18th June 2018, laid out the position in 
Gateshead in terms of skills and employment. Broadly, these are:

 Whilst skills levels are improving, Gateshead continues to have a higher 
than average number of residents with no/low-level skills and a lower than 
average number with high-level skills.

 Levels of benefit dependency and health-related issues remain significantly 
higher than national comparisons.

 A mismatch of skills, both nationally and locally exists, with research1 
showing large mismatches between skills young people are developing 
and the jobs available. 

1 Research by the Centre for Economic and Social Inclusion on the behalf the LGA

  

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



 Challenges exist between learner supply and employer demand when 
trying to address the wider skills needs of the economy. 

 National research shows 1 in 5 workers in elementary type roles are 
classed as underemployed and 13% of part-time workers are people who 
could not find a full-time job. This is particularly concerning given the 
nature of Gateshead’s employment base, with just under 40% of 
employees in entry level jobs2 and just over 25% of the working age 
population working part-time.  

5. This is the fifth and final evidence gathering session being undertaken for this 
review. The previous four sessions have looked at early years and preparedness 
for school, careers and work inspiration, extra-curricular activity at school, post-16 
learning, post-18 learning, career progression and the challenges faced by those 
who are at risk of becoming unemployed or are unemployed and the potential 
barriers they face as a result.  

6. This session will look at the support provided to residents to access employment 
opportunities and the potential opportunities arising in Gateshead from current 
and future developments. Supporting significant numbers of unemployed or 
underemployed residents to take up the jobs created by council investment is an 
explicit demonstration of the Thrive agenda, in addition to the financial benefits 
arising from reduced demand and increased local spending as people move into 
employment.

7. This session will hear an introduction from Sarah Douglas, Workforce 
Development Lead, Economic Development followed by two speakers presenting 
their views on support into work:

 Michaela Wiseman, local resident and Neil Pilkington, Employment 
Adviser, Economic Development 

 Claire Cook, Recruitment Adviser, Economic Development

8. Michaela was referred to Economic Development by her JCP Work Coach in 
February 2018 and presented with the following barriers to employment – a lone 
parent, with health problems and she was also a care leaver.  Michaela was in 
receipt of Job Seekers Allowance at the time of her referral and was searching for 
part time employment and had to work around her childcare commitments.

Michaela completed the Council’s 6-week Skills Support for the Unemployed 
training programme, and then began receiving employment support from the 
Links to Work contract from April 2018.  Michaela was given support by her 
adviser to update her CV, develop her job searching skills and to successfully 
source and apply for suitable vacancies.

Michaela applied for and was successful in gaining part time employment, as a 
Team Member, with Burger King in Trinity Square, Gateshead in July 2018.  
Michaela was initially given support with her travel costs and with setting up a 
Universal Credit account, so that she would receive support with her housing 
costs.  Additional financial support was also provided to Michaela, to help her with 
childcare costs, through the school summer holidays to allow her to sustain her 
employment.

2 SOC 2010 Major Group 6-9, Nomis 2018

Page 12



Michaela has now been in employment with Burger King for over 6 months, she 
really enjoys the role and she has received recognition by her manager for 
continually exceeding the individual sales targets she is given.

9. Claire works closely with local businesses sourcing and generating vacancies to 
maximise opportunities for Gateshead residents. Claire works with the companies 
to create a bespoke/tailored recruitment package and in turn supports the 
company with candidates from Economic Development’s employment 
programmes. Claire currently works closely with employment advisors to 
understand candidates’ skills and desired sectors so that she can suitably match 
to opportunities. Building trust and relationships is key to ensure that both the 
company and the client are benefitting from a match in skills, personality, 
company ethos and future progression.

Issues to Consider

10.When considering the evidence outlined above, the Committee may wish to 
consider the following:

 Gateshead Council is in a strong position to influence local economic 
development through our knowledge of local business and community needs, 
our statutory planning function and our strategic relationships with partners.

 While there is no statutory duty to reduce unemployment or support 
employment growth, Gateshead Council is a key enabler and facilitator of 
partnerships that can make this happen and drive improvements in the local 
area.

 Gateshead Council has a strong track record of using its influence and powers 
to generate community benefits from development activity in the borough. 
Examples include the ‘Quays to Employment’ project, Trinity Square and the 
more recent major supermarket developments across the borough. 

 Between January and December 2018, Economic Development, through job 
brokerage, worked with businesses to support them to recruit to 100 
employment opportunities and successfully filled 79 of those. 

 Development in Gateshead is expected to support up to 10,000 jobs by 2030. 
 This creates a significant opportunity to help large numbers of our residents 

into work, including c1,000 jobs at Gateshead Quays, up to 3,000 jobs at 
Follingsby Max, 500 jobs at Riga, alongside those to be delivered through the 
wider development of Baltic Quarter and schemes at Team Valley.

 Gateshead (June 2018) has 101,000 economically active residents or 77.8% 
of its population aged 16-64. 

 Unemployment stands at 5,300 or 4.2% (December 2018) and is slowly 
climbing

Recommendation

11. It is recommended that the Committee:

 Gives its views on the evidence presented

Contact: Sarah Douglas Ext:  2030 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



-                   COMMUINITIES AND PLACE
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

                                        11th March 2019

TITLE OF REPORT: OSC Review - roads and highways – highways 
maintenance progress update

REPORT OF:           Acting Strategic Director, Communities and Environment
  _________________________________________________________________

SUMMARY 

The final report of the Communities and Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
review of roads and highways was presented in June 2018. One outcome from the 
review was that the position on highway maintenance continued to be monitored, and 
this report provides an update on progress in that particular area. 

________________________________________________________

Background

1. The final report of the Communities and Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
review of roads and highways was presented in June 2018. A specific 
recommendation from the review was:

 that the position on highway maintenance continues to be monitored, with 
further sessions for members arranged as appropriate;

2.This report provides an update on trends with regard to highway maintenance, in 
line with the previous recommendation.

Progress

Defects detected
3. More than 18,000 defects were detected in total in 2018. Excluding categories 

such as observations and obstructions some 16,400 actionable defects were 
identified. The two highest categories of defect were footway trips (7,463) and 
potholes (about 4,746). Together these make up about three quarters of all 
actionable defects.

4. Numbers of actionable defects in 2018 saw a 10% increase over levels in 2017. 
However the increase in the number of potholes, at 30%, was much greater than 
that in footway trips (5.4%).

5. The increase in number of potholes was concentrated early in the year, and is 
most likely to reflect the severe weather at that time. Prolonged periods of cold or 
wet weather typically see a major increase in such defects. Towards the end of the 
year numbers dropped off significantly and, for the final quarter, were at a similar 
level to 2017. 

6. Understanding the trends in footway trips is proving much more difficult. Numbers 
decreased over several years, in spite of there having been no upturn in levels of 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



renewal. The most likely explanation for this is an increasingly strict application of 
the criteria for identifying footway defects. Numbers increased significantly in the 
early part of 2018, but have since fallen back again. 

 
Backlog of defects
7. Over 15,000 highway defects were repaired in 2018, an increase of some 4,000 

over 2017. However, given the increase in the number of defects detected, the 
backlog of repairs has continued to increase. 

Review of policy
8. The policy on the inspection and repair of highways was revised in November 

2018 in order to bring it in line with the new national Code of Practice. This 
establishes a ‘risk based’ approach towards identifying and setting priorities for 
repair. This changes the target times for repair of lower risk defects – previously 
these were identified for repair within either 10 or 40 working days. The new policy 
retains the 10 working day category, but seeks to include lower priority defects as 
part of annual works programmes. This aims to provide more flexibility in planning 
repairs to minor defects, in order to allow better use of resources at a time of 
financial constraint.

9. It is too early to judge the effectiveness or otherwise of the new policy.  This will be 
assessed in future reports. 

10.Current practice in the undertaking of repairs has also been reviewed. The main 
outcome from this is a proposal to trial a new approach known as ‘Micro Asphalt’ 
with the aim of extending the life of surfaces on minor roads. It is anticipated trials 
will be undertaken early in the next financial year.

Future risks
11. The main future risk relating to highway maintenance remains the pressure on 

budgets. The Council’s Highway Asset Management Plan identifies a significant 
shortfall in this area, and pressures continue to mount. While a relatively resilient 
asset in many ways the cumulative effects of under-funding are likely to become 
increasingly evident, and work continues to establish how existing funding gaps 
might be bridged in the longer term.

Recommendations
 
13. That the update report on highway maintenance is noted, and that further 

updates are provided in due course. 

Contact: Anneliese Hutchinson Ext: 3881

Page 16



Page 1 of 3
E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\3\9\AI00008939\$rlm1ncdj.docx

COMMUNITIES & PLACE 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
11 March 2019

TITLE OF REPORT: Flood and Water Management Act 2010 – Annual Progress 
Report

REPORT OF: Anthony Alder, Acting Strategic Director, Communities & 
Environment

SUMMARY

To report progress in the implementation of the duties and responsibilities of Gateshead 
Council as lead local flood authority.

Background 

1. Following the introduction of the Flood and Water Management 2010 the 
Committee has received annual reports outlining:

 the Council’s statutory responsibilities and duties in relation to local flood risk 
management (FRM), following the introduction of the Flood & Water 
Management Act 2010 (F&WMA);

 the duties for local authority scrutiny committees to review work by public sector 
bodies and essential service providers in order to manage flood risk and to 
prepare an annual report on local actions to manage flood risk and to implement 
the Pitt Review.

2. Under the F&WMA each unity authority or county council is identified as the lead 
local flood authority (LLFA) for their district and they are expected to provide 
leadership and accountability for local FRM regarding surface water, groundwater 
and ordinary watercourses.  

3. The Service Director of Development, Transport & Public Protection is the Council’s 
lead officer: the Highway & Flood Risk Management team is managing the function.

Lead local flood authority duties

4. The key implications of the legislation for local authorities are:
 preparing, maintaining and publishing a local FRM strategy to link to the 

Environment Agency’s (EA) national and local strategies;
 preparing, maintaining and publishing a register of third party FRM infrastructure 

assets;
 investigating reported flooding incidents and publishing a register of 

investigations;

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



Page 2 of 3
E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\3\9\AI00008939\$rlm1ncdj.docx

 statutory consultee to the local planning authority (LPA) for sustainable drainage 
systems (SuDS);

 consenting of ordinary watercourse works (diverting, culverting, restricting flow);
 cooperation with and oversight of other FRM bodies.

Local flood risk management strategy

5. The flood risk management strategy was approved by full Council in January 2017.  
A review and possible update is planned for the 2019/20 financial year.

Register of third party FRM infrastructure

6. The register must include location, size, condition and ownership details of drainage 
infrastructure (river embankments, walls, revetments, culverts etc.) that prevent or 
limit flooding on ordinary watercourses.  The register has been established and work 
is ongoing to identify and map critical culverts.  

Investigation of flood incidents

7. Informal flooding investigations are regularly undertaken by the FRM team.  These 
typically result in the identification of small scale improvement works or general 
advice to customers.

8. No formal flooding investigations were undertaken in 2018. 

Sustainable drainage systems statutory consultee 

9. SuDS are natural or manmade green infrastructure features designed to store water 
or discharge water to the ground to limit flows to downstream drainage systems: 
examples include soakaways, ponds, and swales.  SuDS also have the benefit of 
improving water quality.

10. The Government introduced regulations in April 2015 requiring major developments 
to incorporate SuDS as part of the site surface water management systems.  The 
regulations established the LPA as the body responsible for approving SuDS and 
the LLFA became statutory consultee for the SuDS approval process.  One 
dedicated SuDS officer is employed to respond to the consultations.

Consenting of ordinary watercourse works

11. Consenting procedures have been developed in conjunction with the EA.  Typically 
two or three applications each year are received for the culverting or diversion of 
small lengths of watercourses.

12. It is likely that the increase in house building will result in more applications for 
consent in the coming years.

Page 18



Page 3 of 3
E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\3\9\AI00008939\$rlm1ncdj.docx

Scrutiny and oversight of other FRM bodies

13. Biannual liaison meetings take place with officers from the FRM team, other 
Communities & Environment colleagues and officers from the EA and NW.

14. Regional groups of LLFA officers meet regularly to share best practise, experience 
and local knowledge.  The groups include officers with expertise in FRM, 
development management, planning policy and environmental management.

Recommendations

15. It is recommended that the Committee: 
 notes the statutory responsibilities of Gateshead Council for local FRM and the 

measures taken to comply with those duties;

 receive an annual progress report in March 2020.

CONTACT: Jimmy Young EXTENSION: 3073

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



             

TITLE OF REPORT: Annual Work Programme

REPORT OF: Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive 
Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate Services and 
Governance

Summary

The report sets out the provisional work programme for Communities and Place Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee for the municipal year 2018/19.

1. The Committee’s provisional work programme was endorsed at the meeting held on 23 
April 2018 and Councillors have agreed that further reports will be brought to future 
meetings to highlight current issues / identify any changes/additions to this programme. 

2. Appendix 1 sets out the work programme as it currently stands. Any changes proposed 
to the programme are set out in bold and italics for ease of identification.   

Recommendations 

3.  The Committee is asked to

a) Note the provisional programme; 

b) Note that further reports on the work programme will be brought to the Committee 
to identify any additional policy issues, which the Committee may be asked to 
consider.

Contact: Angela Frisby Extension: 2138

COMMUNITIES AND PLACE
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

11 March 2019

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1
Communities & Place OSC 2018/19 Work Programme
18 June 2018  Constitution / role and remit

 The Council Plan – Year End Assessment 
and Performance Delivery 2017-18

 OSC Review of the Council and Partner’s 
Approach to Roads and Highways – Final 
Report 

 OSC Review - Work to address skill 
shortages and increase employment 
opportunities - Scoping Report and Evidence 
Gathering 

 Verbal Update - TWAM/Beamish 
 Work Programme 

17 Sept 2018  OSC Review – Work to address skill 
shortages and increase employment 
opportunities - Evidence Gathering

 OSC Review of the Council’s and Partner’s 
Approach to Roads and Highways – 
Monitoring Report 

 Work Programme
29 Oct 2018 Part 1 of Agenda

 Adhoc Policy Issue – Gambling Statement 
of Principles
Part 2 of Agenda

 OSC Review – Work to address skill 
shortages and increase employment 
opportunities - Evidence Gathering

 Work Programme
10 Dec 2018  OSC Review – Work to address skill 

shortages and increase employment 
opportunities -Evidence Gathering -

 The Council Plan – Six Monthly Assessment 
of Performance and Delivery 2018 -19 

 Work Programme
28 Jan 2019  OSC Review –Work to address skill 

shortages and increase employment 
opportunities - Evidence Gathering 

 Managing the Environment – waste/litter/dog 
fouling - Progress Update 

 GO Gateshead Sport and Leisure – Progress 
Update – moved from 17 Sept – agreed with 
Chair

 Work Programme
11 March 2019  OSC Review –Work to address skill 

shortages and increase employment 
opportunities - Evidence Gathering 

 The Flood and Water Management Act   
2010: Annual Progress Report

 Beamish - Annual Update 
 Management of Highways – potholes /traffic 

Page 23



Appendix 1
lights/street lights – Progress Update

 Work Programme 
29 April 2019  OSC Review – Work to address skill 

shortages and increase employment 
opportunities - Final Report

 OSC Review of the Council’s and Partner’s 
Approach to Roads and Highways – 
Monitoring Report

 Beamish/TWAM Update – moved from 11 
March as agreed with Chair/Vice Chair

 Annual Report of the Gateshead Housing 
Customer Scrutiny Panel 

 Annual Work Programme Review
Issue to slot in

 Postal Provision

Page 24


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the last meeting
	3 OSC Review -Work to address skill shortages and increase employment opportunities - Evidence Gathering
	4 OSC Review of Roads and Highways - Highways Maintenance Progress Update
	5 Flood and Water Management Act 2010 - Annual Progress Report
	6 Annual Work Programme
	APPENDIX 1 - Annual Work Programme


